1: 39: 03 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair

HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
April 3, 2012
1:39 p.m

Stoltze called the House Finance Conmittee neeting

to order at 1:39 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve

ALSO PRESENT

Joe M chel ,
Representati ve
Conmi ssi oner,
Devel opnent ;

Comm ssi on on Aging;

Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair

Bill Thomas Jr., Co-Chair
Anna Faircl ough, Vice-Chair
Ma Costello

M ke Doogan

Bryce Edgnon

Les Gara

David Guttenberg

Mar k Neuman

Tamm e WI son

Reggi e Joul e

Staff, Representati ve Bill Stoltze;
Bob Herron, Sponsor; Les Mrse, Deputy
Depar t ment of Educati on and Early

Deni se Daniello, Executive Director, Al aska

Marie Darlin, American Associ ati on of

Retired Per sons- Al aska,; W da Laughl i n, Legi sl ative
Liaison, Ofice of the Conm ssioner, Departnent of Health
and Social Services; Jill Lews, Deputy Director, Division
of Public Health, Departnent of Health and Social Services;
Erin Harrington, Staff, Representative Al an Austerman;
Representative Alan Dick, Sponsor ; Representative Max
Gruenberg, Sponsor; Anne Carpeneti, Assistant Attorney
CGeneral, Legal Services Section-Juneau, Crimnal Division,

Department of Law, Representative Al an Austerman

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

House Fi nance Committee 1

04/03/12 1:39 P.M



Ward Hurl burt, Director and Chief Medical Oficer, Division
of Public Health, Departnent of Health and Social Services;
David D Amato, CGovernnent Affairs Director, Alaska Primary
Care Association; Rosalyn Singleton, Pediatrician, Al aska
Native Tribal Health Consortium Carnen QGutierrez, Deputy
Comm ssi oner, Departnment of Corrections

SUMVARY
HB 276 O L/ GAS PRODUCTI ON TAX CREDI TS: NENANA
HB 276 was SCHEDULED but not HEARD.
HB 296 CRI ME OF ESCAPE/ DEF. OF CORRECT. FACILITY

CSHB 296(JUD) was REPORTED out of conmittee with
"no recommendation" and with one new zero fiscal
note from the Departnent of Law and two
previously published fiscal notes: FN1 (DOC), FN3
(DA .

HB 310 STATE | MVUNI ZATI ON PROGRAM

CSHB 310(FIN) was REPORTED out of conmittee with
a "do pass" recomendation and wth one new
fiscal inpact note from Department of Health and
Soci al Servi ces.

HB 330 STATE EDUCATI ON STANDARDS

HB 330 was HEARD and HELD in Commttee for
further consideration.

#hb310
HOUSE BI LL NO. 310

"An Act tenporarily reinstating the child and adult
i mruni zation program in the Departnent of Health and
Soci al Services; and providing for an effective date."

1: 39: 35 PM

Vice-chair Fairclough MOVED to ADOPT proposed committee
substitute for HB 310, Wrk Draft 27-LS1273\l (M schel,
3/27/12).

Co-Chair Stoltze OBJECTED for purpose of discussion.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 04/03/12 1:39 P. M



JCE M CHEL, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE BILL STOLTZE, stated that

the changes were all located on page 3 of the work draft.
On page 3, line 5 "nmeningococcal"” and "rotavirus" were
added. On page 3, line 8 "zoster" was added; "zoster" was

anot her nanme for shingles. Section 2, subsection g, part 2,
sub-parts A and B were added:

(2) subtract vaccines frominclusion in the programif
(A) the disease for which the vaccine is provided has
been declared eradicated in the United States by the
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, United
St ates Departnent of Health and Human Services; or

(B) the conm ssioner finds that available high-grade
scientific evidence indicates that subtracting the

vaccine from inclusion in the program wll result in
optimal efficacy and efficiency for the benefit of
resi dents.

M. Mchel stated that |ine 19, subsection h was added:

(h) The procurenent of vaccines that are provided
under the program is subject to the availability of
f undi ng.

Co-Chair Stoltze WTHDREW his OBJECTION. There being NO
further OBJECTION, Work Draft 27-LS1273\|1 was ADOPTED.

REPRESENTATI VE BOB HERRON, SPONSOR, described SB 310. He
stated that HB 310 is a stop-gap neasure to reinstate the
Al aska | nmuni zation Program (AIP), which ainmed to prevent
and control vaccine-preventable diseases in Alaska, to its
former |evel of coverage. Every year, Alaskans renenber a
storied health energency — our Iditarod commenorates the
1925 “Great Race of Mercy” serum run to None. Then, None
and several surrounding comunities were in the throes of a
di phtheria epidemic, and dog teanms with their fearless
mushers braved the elenments to deliver a |life-saving
antitoxin. Today, thanks to preventative vaccines, the
di sease has been nearly eradicated in the United States.
Still, Alaska communities are highly vulnerable to
debilitating but entirely preventable health crises. For
decades, Federal funding ensured the AP could nake
preventative vaccines accessible to all Al askans desiring
them But that funding has seen a sharp downturn - from
$4.3 MIlion in FY10, to a nere $700 thousand in FY2013.
These reductions have cut the nunber of vaccines avail able

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 04/03/12 1:39 P. M



to children, and conpletely discontinued those available to
adults in our state. Preventative vaccines control diseases
such as whooping cough, |ockjaw, pneunonia, neningitis,
polio, and others - silently saving lives every day.
Prevention, generally, is key — and by far the npbst cost-
effective way to address health issues. If we do not
prevent, we wll have to treat, at far greater human and
financial cost. HB 310 and Senate Conmpanion SB 144
tenporarily substitute state funding for the decrease in
federal funding to AIP, through FY2015, while we seek a
nore permanent solution. It provides a humane and busi ness-
smart solution to the growing problem of wunnecessary
di sease wracki ng our conmmuniti es.

1:44:33 PM

Co-Chair Thomas pointed to page 2, line 5 and wondered why
the word "nmay" was used. Representative Herron responded
that the bill gave the Departnment of Health and Soci al

Services (DHSS) the authority to decide which vaccines may
be added or subtracted to the program He stated that DHSS
currently wanted to add neningococcal and rotavirus to the
list of "recomended vaccines.”

Co-Chair Thomas reiterated his question about the term
"may" included in the bill.

Representative Gara added that the departnment should have
flexibility to determ ne the recommended vaccines, and felt
t hat perhaps the word, "shall", should be used instead.

Representative Herron deferred the question to the
Departnment of Health and Soci al Services (DHSS).

Representative Gara asked if the funding for Chlanydia and
Gonorrhea prevention would disappear if the bill was
passed. Representative Herron responded that HB 310 did not
have any effect on that funding.

Representative Gara assunmed the bill would cover public
heal th center immunizations. He asked for verification that
the bill would not provide imunizations for individuals

who could pay for them Representative Herron replied in
the affirmative.

Co-Chair Stoltze wondered if the there was a subsidy for
vaccihations in nedical facilities other than health

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 04/03/12 1:39 P. M



centers. Representati ve Her ron responded in t he
affirmative.

Representative Gara wondered if the vaccination would be
subsidized, if the patient was receiving the vaccination
froma private provider.

Representative Herron deferred the question to the nedical
pr of essi onal .

Representative Neuman declared that he had a problem wth
mandat ory i nmuni zations from the governnent. He | ooked at
page 3, lines 4 and 5, which stated that the vaccines
i ncluded in the program

(1) for a child under 19 years of age are all vaccines
required for school attendance under AS 14.30.125 and
nmeni ngococcal , rotavirus, influenza, and pneunococca
vacci nes

Representative Neuman wondered if the vaccinations were
required for people who choose to keep their children homne-
schooled or in a correspondence program Representative
Herron responded that the bill would not change any current
practice or process.

1: 50: 52 PM

LES MORSE, DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATI ON AND
EARLY DEVELOPMENT, believed that Representative Herron was
correct, but he would need to follow up on the question
with nore information at a |ater date.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked who would verify the issue. M.
Morse woul d nake contact the departnment and would follow up
nonentarily.

Representative Neuman remarked that his children were not
required to receive vaccinations, because they did not
attend school buil di ngs.

Representati ve Neuman | ooked at page 3, line 9:
In addition to the vaccines listed in (f) of this
section, the comm ssioner may

(1) add vaccines for inclusion in the program based on
recomendations by 11 the federal advisory committee

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 04/03/12 1:39 P. M



on inmunization practices and the availability of
fundi ng

Representative Neuman renmarked that although there were
specific vaccines listed, the conm ssioner could add any
i muni zations, wthout statutory authority or approval from
the |egislature. Representative Herron affirmed that
assunpti on.

Representative Neunman |ooked at page 3, line 4, "for a
child under 19 years of age." He believed that people in
the state of Al aska becane adults at age 18. He wondered
why an "adult" would be required to have a vaccination.
Representative Herron deferred to the departnent, but
assunmed that |anguage was currently witten in statute.

Co-Chair Stoltze remarked that it was probably not uncommon
for a 19-year-old to attend public high school

Representative Neuman stressed that the statute did not
list the age of the vaccine recipient.

Representative Guttenberg |ooked at page 2, line 21. He
asked who was exenpt from |icensure under the provision.
Representative Herron deferred the answer to DHSS.

Representative Guttenberg wondered if the screening records
would be in conpliance with Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act (H PAA) |aws. Representative Herron
responded in the affirmative.

Representative WIson asked why specific |anguage "for
vacci nes” was added. Representative Herron deferred the
question to the DHSS. He assuned that di seases were conmon
enough that the departnent agreed there should be regular
vacci nations for specific diseases.

Representative W/Ison |ooked at the attached fiscal note
and pointed out that the explanation showed that the
federal funding had been cut to $700,000 in 2010. She noted
a possible discrepancy in total received federal funds.
Representative Herron replied that he had not seen the
finance fiscal note.

1:56: 57 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 04/03/12 1:39 P. M



WARD HURLBURT, DI RECTOR AND CHI EF MEDI CAL OFFI CER, DI VI SI ON
OF PUBLI C HEALTH, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SCCI AL SERVI CES
(via teleconference), explained that 50 percent of Al askan
children benefit from the federally funded recomended
i mmuni zations. He stated that an additional 25 percent of
Al aska's children were in famlies where adequate private
heal th insurance was available to cover nbst of the costs
of the recommended inmunizations, so the bill would not
cover vaccines for any of those 75 percent of Alaska's
children. Therefore, 25 percent of Alaska's children were
not covered by private health insurance or federal vaccines
for children program This 25 percent of children places
the other 75 percent at risk, because of the concept of
"herd immunity." If the immunity level for a preventable
cont agi ous di sease was not sufficiently high, all nenbers
of the community were at a higher risk. He stated that
there was a low |level of munps imunization in California
in 2010, nore than 2000 babi es and young chil dren devel oped
munps. So, California needed to engage in a nmajor
i mmuni zati on program Al aska had seen remarkable successes
related to vaccines that had becone available during his
pr of essi onal tenure.

2:01: 50 PM

Dr. Hurlburt suggested that the decisions regarding the
speci fic recommended vacci nes should be nmade on the nedical
and clinical | evel . He remarked that vaccines are
constantly changi ng and i nproving.

Co-Chair Stoltze acknow edged Rotary Cubs International
for their effort to eradicate polio.

Dr. Hurlburt agreed. He pointed out that the policy
requi renents were specific for "school entry." He stressed
that there was no intent to change current policy. He
stated that mlitary physicians or public health service
physi ci ans were not required to have an Al aska |icense, but
were required to have a license from another state. He
remarked that the four new vaccines were recomended
because they are not required for school entry, but were
recommended by the Anerican Coll ege of Enmergency Physicians
(ACEP). The neningococcal vaccine was used to prevent
meningitis. The rotavirus vaccine was used to prevent
di arrhea, and that vaccine was not as cost effective at the
national |y, but Alaska had many cases of infantile
di arr hea. | nfl uenza  and pneunococcal vacci nes wer e

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 04/03/12 1:39 P. M



recommended annual vaccines, and he remarked that babies
and ol der adults were particularly susceptible to
i nfluenza. He addressed the fiscal note, and stated there
were two $700,000 figures. The federal governnent funding
had been reduced to $700,000, and the governor had
request ed an additional $700, 000.

2: 06: 13 PM

Representative WIson wondered who determned the required
vacci nations for schools. Dr. Hurlburt responded that the
vaccines required for school entry were specific to the
risk and susceptibility of the specific diseases for the
particul ar ages of the children.

Representative WIson asked whether the doctor believed
that children should receive the influenza vaccination
annual ly. Dr. Hurlburt responded in the affirmative

Vice-chair Fairclough wondered if the conmm ssioner of
Department of Health and Social Services was the person in
charge to determ ne vaccinations at schools. Dr. Hurlburt
responded in the affirmative.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough did not know why lines 3 through 8
needed to be in statute, as the conm ssioner currently had
the ability to nmake the deci sion.

2:09:58 PM

Dr. Hurlburt believed that the |anguage had been included
to clarify the current practice. He understood that the
deci si on-maki ng authority was with the DHSS comm ssi oner.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough declared that she had a son who had
been adversely affected by an imunization. She did not
want to be put in the position of recomrending a particul ar
i mruni zation; she would |eave that to the comm ssioner and
medi cal professionals to nake the deci sion.

Representative Gara asked what the added $4.4 mllion
covered, that the governor's request of $700,000 did not.
Dr . Hur | burt responded that vacci nations were very
expensi ve. The total cost for a 2-year-old' s vaccines, not
including administration, was $18,000. He furthered that
the shingles vaccine, that was currently recomrended for
t hose 55-years-old and ol der, was very expensive. He stated

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 04/03/12 1:39 P. M



that the amount of the federal noney and the governor's
budget totaled $1.4 nillion, and was very linmted conpared
to the actual cost of vaccinations. He stressed that it was
appropriate to exam ne vaccines from a cost-effectiveness
perspective. He felt that the nobney spent on vaccinations
was noney spent to save hunman |ives.

Representative Gara wondered how the departnent would
prevent "duplicate vaccines" that were available at city
health centers, schools, and conmunity health clinics.

2:15: 09 PM

Dr. Hur | burt believed that DHSS would procure the
i mmuni zations in all of the nentioned exanples. He
understood that there were sone duplication issues, so he
felt that there needed to be only one procurenent source
He furthered that DHSS continued to |ook at different ways
to obtain funding. He wunderstood that the three-year
initial authorization was intended for the departnent to
exam ne funding alternatives. The public health nursing
centers had been designated by the Anchorage Comunity
Health Center, so therefore uninsured children would be
qual i fied under the Federal Vaccines for Children Program

Vice-chair Fairclough referred to a question related to the
overal |l subsidy of vaccines. She wondered if the subsidy of
vaccines was reflected in his previous statenent about the
State providing vaccines at a lower cost to health clinics
and nuni ci palities.

Dr. Hurlburt responded that vaccinations that were procured
under this legislation to providers were given to eligible
children at no cost for the wvaccine. However, an
adm nistrative fee may be charged.

2:19:28 PM

DAVI D D AMATO, GOVERNMENT AFFAI RS DI RECTOR, ALASKA PRI MARY
CARE ASSOCI ATION (APCA) (via teleconference), spoke in
strong support of HB 310. He discussed that there had been
a profound shortage of vaccinations in recent years. Sone
of the nore capable |ocations had bought vaccinations to
provi de; however, others had not. The APCA was "delighted"
the bill had been introduced.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 04/03/12 1:39 P. M



ROSALYN  SI NGLETON, PEDI ATRI Cl AN, ALASKA NATIVE TRIBAL
HEALTH CONSORTIUM (via tel econference), testified in
support of HB 210. She renenbered treating a very high
nunber of infants with nmeningitis, who had either died or
devel oped severe brain damage as a result of the
meningitis. Al aska had a very high rate of the disease, but
since 1990 the rate of the disease had decreased by 95
percent. In the year prior to the licensure of the
vacci nation, four people had been lost including two
teenagers. She discussed hospitalization of individuals
with measles, was very concerned about the grow ng nunber
of communities that were under vaccinated. She urged the
passage of the bill.

Co-Chair Stoltze renenbered a famly nenber that had dealt
wi th a neasl es out break.

2:25: 03 PM

DENI SE DAN ELLO, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA COW SSI ON ON
AG NG, spoke in support of HB 310. The commission felt that
the legislation was inportant for Al askans of all ages. The
vaccinations would help to keep people healthy. As people
age, their imune systens deplete and the i mrunizations
woul d hel p keep people healthy. Al so thanked conmttee for
addi ng the shingl es vacci ne.

MARI E DARLIN, AMERI CAN ASSOCI ATION OF RETIRED PERSONS-
ALASKA, testified in support of HB 310. She stressed that
vacci nations of older citizens was an effective health
pr ocedure. She al so ment i oned gr andparents raising
grandchildren, and felt that this legislation was very
inmportant for them and the state.

2:30: 21 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze CLOSED public testinony.

Representative Edgnon stated that Dr. Hurlburt had worked
with one of his relatives.

Vice-chair Fairclough remarked that the fiscal note stated
that the State would replace federal funds, so she wondered
if there were new listings in the area of illness that had
been added or if were they all covered under the previous
federal program Dr. Hurlburt asked to hear the question
agai n.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 04/03/12 1:39 P. M



Vice-chair Fairclough restated her question. Dr. Hurlburt
stated that the only added i nmuni zati on was for HPV.

Representati ve Costello spoke in support of t he
| egi sl ation. She discussed receiving inmunizations in the
famly health <clinic. She asked whether there was a
provision included that would allow people with insurance
to visit the public health clinic.

Dr. Hurlburt responded that if an individual had insurance
that covered the immnizations the bill would not provide
funding for those individuals. He added that no one would
be denied care at a public health center.

2:38: 07 PM

Representative Neuman pointed to a vaccination exenption
form that Ilisted admnistrative codes. He wondered if
refusal to vaccinate based on a philosophical standpoint
woul d be considered an exenption based on religion. Dr.
Hur | burt stated that some parents have vaccination
hesitancy. He stressed that the vaccine hesitancy rate in
Al aska was 9 percent, which was the highest of any state
He remarked that Alaska was nunber 42 in the country for
i muni zations, and stressed that there was work to continue
efforts in thorough vacci nati ons.

Representati ve Neuman wondered why there were inmunizations
required as listed on page 3, lines 4 through 9. Dr.
Hur |l burt answered that the itens had been listed to clarify
that there would not be a change. He stressed that the |ist
i ncluded vaccinations required for school entries and
federal recomendations. He furthered that the recommended
vacci nations for adults were based on the perceived |evel
of inportance.

Representative Doogan referenced the repeal |anguage on
page 4. He wondered why the program would be discontinued
in 2015.

2:45: 44 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze assuned that the sunset date was standard
for this kind of |egislation.

House Fi nance Committee 11 04/03/12 1:39 P. M



Representative Herron | ooked to page 2, line 1, and stated
that the act is considered tenporary. He furthered that
time was needed to determ ne what is best for Al askans. The
next legislature and administration would be given the
chance to determ ne the next step.

Representative Gara asked about the "shall" |anguage. He
pointed to page 2, line 5 He wondered whether there was
objection to change "may" to "shall." Dr. Hurlburt replied

that he was not an attorney. As a reasonable person, he
bel i eved the change would allow for flexibility.

W LDA  LAUGHLI N, LEG SLATI VE LI Al SON, OFFICE OF THE
COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES,
asked for a restatenent of the question.

Representative Gara repeated his question.

Ms. Laughlin deferred the question to the Departnent of
Law.

Representative Gara stated that he would discuss the issue
with the Departnent of Law after the neeting, and also
speak to the issue on the House floor, if the bill reported
out of commttee.

Representati ve Neuman asked whether anyone in Al aska could
visit a clinic and ask to receive the vaccinations

2:49: 53 PM

Ms. Laughlin deferred the question to Dr. Hurl burt.

Dr. Hurlburt responded that the bill's intent was for
services for Al askan residents. He believed the issue may
not be clear and that visitors could potentially get the
vacci nati ons.

Represent ati ve Neuman asked how t he program woul d wor k.

Dr. Hur | burt responded that the vaccinations were
distributed to the providers at no cost to the recipient
and by the agreenment the provider could not <charge a
vacci nation fee; however an admnistration fee could be
char ged.

House Fi nance Committee 12 04/03/12 1:39 P. M



Ms. Laughlin noted that the departnment was working on
getting an answer from DOL.

M. Mrse addressed an earlier question, and he discussed
nmedi cal and religious waivers. He stated that every student
that was enrolled in the public and private school systens
was required to be immunized, therefore, the requirenent
also applied to correspondent students. He addressed a
question related to school age. He explained that school
age was defined as age 6 through 19.

Representative WIson asked whether <children receiving
homeschooling would be exenpt. M. Mrse read from the
bill, "before entry into a state public school district or
a non-public school offering pre-elenentary through grade
12." He stressed that the requirenent spoke of entry into a
school

Co-Chair Stoltze asked whether it was entry into a schoo

building or the system M. Mrse clarified that it was a
school system and not a "brick and nortar" building. He
felt that if a child was privately hone-schooled, that
woul d not apply to a "school system"”

2:55: 30 PM

Vice-chair Fairclough directed attention to the Departnent
of Health and Social Services fiscal inpact note. She
detailed that FY 13 through FY 15 included $4.496 nillion
per year, wth $700,000 added from the governor's current
budget request.

Representative Doogan discussed the fiscal not e. He
wondered whether the noney in the governor's budget was
subtracted or added to the $4.5 mllion. Co-Chair Stoltze
interjected that it was $5.1 mllion.

JILL LEWS, DEPUTY DI RECTOR, DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH,
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVICES, asked for a
repeat of the question.

Representati ve Doogan wondered whether the noney in the
governor's budget was subtracted or added to the $4.5
mllion. Ms. Lewis replied that the total amunt was $5.8
mllion. The current budget included $700,000 of federal
funds and the governor's budget included $700,000 - both
were subtracted fromthe anount which equaled $4.5 million

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 04/03/12 1:39 P. M



Representative Doogan surm sed that the actual fiscal note
would include amounts that were actually above $$4.5
million. M. Lewis replied that there was an assunption
that the federal funds would continue to be provided, along
wi th the governor's request.

Represent ati ve Doogan believed it was a big assunption.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough stressed that the governor's request
for the $700,000 was part of the base, so it currently
existed in the operating budget that had passed the House.
Ms. Lewis affirmed Vice-chair Fairclough' s statenent.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough asked if the fiscal note added $4. 456
mllion in FY 13 through FY 15 to the $700,000 from the
federal governnent, the additional $630,000 of general
funds, plus the $70,000 of federal match funds, for a grand
total of $770,000 of federal receipts and $630,000 of
general fund receipts.

Representative Wl son asked

Ms. Lewis replied that the bill provided flexibility to add
or subtract vaccines to fit the avail able funding

3:01: 53 PM

Representative WIlson asked if there would be flexibility
in the required list of vaccinations. M. Lewis responded
that wunder the conditions listed in the bill, t he
flexibility was provided.

Ms. Laughlin informed the commttee that Comm ssioner
Streur preferred the "may" |anguage, but he was concerned
that if there was a lack of funding there would be a
probl em

Representative Herron stated that the |anguage on page 3,
line 19 was very inportant for the |egislation.

Representative Neuman asked whether the fiscal not e
i ncl uded noney for advertising the immnizations.

Ms. Lewi s responded in the negative.

House Fi nance Committee 14 04/03/12 1:39 P. M



Representati ve Doogan comrented that the total fiscal note
was $5.9 mllion. He wanted to nake sure that the commttee
understood that there was a $6 mllion total.

Co-Chair Stoltze believed the comment was a relevant part
of the fiscal discussion.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough MOVED to report CSHB 310(FIN) out of
committee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so ordered.

CSHB 310(FIN) was REPORTED out of conmittee with a "do
pass" recomendation and with one new fiscal inpact note
from Department of Health and Social Services.

3: 05: 24 PM
AT EASE

3:17: 59 PM
RECONVENED

#hb330
HOUSE BI LL NO. 330

"An Act establishing a Joint Legislative Task Force on
Education Standards; requiring the Departnent of Labor
and Workforce Developnment to provide information and
resources to the task force; establishing state
education standards; anmending the authority of the
Department of Education and Early Devel opnent to adopt
education standards; and providing for an effective
date."

3:18: 08 PM

Vice-chair Fairclough MOVED to ADOPT proposed committee
substitute for HB 330, Wrk Draft 27-LS1100\0O (M schel,
4/ 3/ 12) .

Co-Chair Stoltze OBJECTED for discussion.

ERIN HARRI NGTON, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE ALAN AUSTERMAN,
expl ai ned the changes in the CS:

-Title & Section 1:
Del etes Legi sl ative Findings Section.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 04/03/12 1:39 P. M



-New Section 1
M nor nodifications to | anguage.
Revised the analysis of public education funding to
make the work product nore conci se.
Report of findings and any proposed |legislation to the
Governor, Department of Education & Early Devel opnent
and the | egislature by Septenber 30, 2013.
Task Force Menbership consists of six nenbers of the
Legi slature and five nmenbers as foll ows:
1. President of the Association of Al aska Schoo
Boar ds
2. President of the Alaska Council of School
Admi ni strators
3. A public school superintendent
4. A University of Alaska representative
5. A representative of a major career destination
of high school graduates in the state.
The Governor shall appoint a representative.
6. The task force neets at the call of a co-
chair. The Senate President and House Speaker
shall jointly appoint the co-chairs of the task
force.
The Departnent of Education & Early Devel opnent wll
provide data and information necessary for the Task
Force to carry out its work.

Co-Chair Stoltze WTHDREW his OBJECTION. There being NO
OBJECTI ON, Work Draft 27-LS1100\ O was ADOPTED.

3:22:35 PM
AT EASE

3:23: 04 PM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair Stoltze MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent 1.

Vi ce-chair Fai r cl ough OBJECTED for di scussi on. She
explained that in order to represent the sponsor's intent
Amendnent 1 deleted the word "five" and inserted the word
“"four™ on page 3, line 3. The oversight of the
superintendent of a public school was deleted on page 3,
line 6. She W THDREW her obj ecti on.

There being NO further OBJECTI ON, Anendnment 1 was ADOPTED

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 04/03/12 1:39 P. M



REPRESENTATI VE ALAN DI CK, SPONSOR, discussed the bill an
asked for a neaningful conversation related to severa
educational issues. He directed attention to the standards
of the educational system He had experience with Al aska
core and Al aska state standards that were essentially the
sane with sonme mnor exceptions. He was concerned that the
adoption of the proposed standards would lead the state
down a path with an indetermnate fiscal note. He discussed
that nost curriculum cycles were 6 years. The Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnment and the Board of Education
woul d, by default, be required to adopt the core standards
if no action was taken.

3:36:52 PM

Representative Dick read from the proposed standards. He
asked whether the standards spoke to the need. He thought
every standard in school should have a real life
application. He believed rigor should be redirected; so
students should be encouraged towards careers. He believed
there should be a neani ngful conversation before "we follow
the | emm ngs over the cliff.”

Representative Dick felt that if a child was not college
bound, the standards were unnecessary. He wondered if the
system shoul d be designed for all students to be on a fast
track to college, or should it be designed to |let everyone
be exposed to the "crunbs that fall off the table."

Representative Dick would like to see the standards field
tested. He wondered whether a massive infrastructure would
be built on a faulty foundation.

3:42: 48 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze CLOSED public testinony.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough believed there was a valid point that
may not be reflected in the fiscal note. She discussed the
system that was requesting additional support, and pointed
out that there would be an additional expense. She thought
the fiscal note fell short, and felt that there would be
costs in curriculum and text books. She believed the
Department of Education and Early Devel opnment should be
required to nake a cost estinate.

House Fi nance Committee 17 04/03/12 1:39 P. M



Co-Chair Stoltze believed that the fiscal notes were
appropriate because they were waiting on information from
the task force.

HB 330 was HEARD and HELD in Committee for further
consi derati on.

3:47: 36 PM
AT EASE

3:49: 20 PM
RECONVENED

#hb296
HOUSE BI LL NO. 296

"An Act relating to service of process on prisoners

relating to the crinme of escape; relating to the
definition of 'correctional facility'; anending Rule
4, Al aska Rules of Cvil Procedure; and providing for
an effective date.™

3:49:25 PM

Co-Chair Stoltze referred to a question about clarity from
t he Departnment of Corrections. He had asked for a letter on
position that had not been provided.

CARMEN  GUTI ERREZ, DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT  OF
CORRECTIONS (via tel econference), commented on the work of
the departnent with the Departnent of Law on the definition
of "secure confinenent."

3:51: 10 PM
AT EASE

3:51: 23 PM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair Stoltze queried DOC s position on the bill.

Ms. Cutierrez replied that the departnent had worked with
Departnment of Law on a definition of secure confinenent.
The departnent was neutral on its position on the bill.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked Ms. Gutierrez to proceed.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 04/03/12 1:39 P. M



Ms. Qutierrez continued to explain that the departnent had
worked with DOL on a definition of secure confinenment. She
remarked that the purpose of determning the definition was
to ensure that the statute was in line with the Court of
Appeal s recent decision in the Bridge v. State case. She
stated that DOC had no position with regard to the
cl assification of a m sdeneanor of f ender as a
"m sdeneanant” if he or she should wal k away from a half-
way house or community residential center. She stressed the
recognition of the cost to the state when individuals are
prosecuted for felony offenses for that kind of conduct.

3:55: 39 PM

Co- Chair Stoltze asked how DOC becane involved in the bill.
Ms. CQutierrez explained that the departnment had becone
i nvol ved when it had heard about the definition of secure
confi nenent, so DOC had wanted to ensure that t he
definition would do what was i nt ended.

Co-Chair Stoltze surmsed that he departnent's invol venent
was that it ensured that the | egal requirenents were net.

Representative Gara asked about a case - Bridge v State -
he wondered about the ruling. Ms. Cutierrez replied that if
a m sdeneanant wal ked away from a hal f-way house, it was a
cl ass A m sdeneanor offense.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked whether the term "security guards”
were used in hal f-way houses.

REPRESENTATI VE MAX GRUENBERG SPONSOR, requested that Anne
Car peneti cone forward.

Co-Chair Stoltze wondered if the personnel at half-way
houses were considered "security guards.” He stated that at
correctional facilities it was pejorative to cal
correctional officers "guards."

Ms. CQutierrez replied that the Departnent of Corrections
staff was referred to as "correctional officers."”

Ms. Qutierrez spoke in high regard of the correctional
officers. The goal of the statute was to ensure that the
hal fway houses or comunity residential centers were
di stingui shed as secured correctional facilities.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 04/03/12 1:39 P. M



4:00: 40 PM

ANNE CARPENETI, ASSI STANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, LEGAL SERVI CES
SECTI ONF JUNEAU, CRIMNAL DIVISION, DEPARTMENT OF LAW
expl ai ned how the issue had evol ved. The Departnment of Law
wanted to ensure that the definition applied only to the
stat ute.

Representative WIson asked whether the departnment believed
that there would not be nore prisoners wal king away from
the facilities. Ms. Qutierrez believed that prior testinony
had explained it would be a case by case basis. The
departnment did not know whether the bill would affect a
prisoner's decision to walk away from a hal f-way house.

Co-Chair Stoltze was frustrated that the Departnent of
Corrections did not have an official position on the bill.
He remarked that he was not confortable noving the bill out
of the commttee.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough discussed the fiscal notes.

Representative Gara nmoved to make the Departnent of
Adm nistration fiscal note a zero fiscal not.

Co-Chair Stoltze objected, and felt that an indetermnate
fiscal note was better than a zero fiscal note.

Vi ce-chair Fairclough MOVED to report CSHB 296(JUD) out of
commttee wth i ndi vi dual reconmendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal notes. There being NO OBJECTIQN, it was
so ordered.

CSHB 296(JUD) was REPORTED out of commttee wth "no
reconmendation” and with one new zero fiscal note from the
Departnment of Law and two previously published fiscal
notes: FNL (DOC), FN3 (DOA).

#hb276
HOUSE BI LL NO. 276

"An Act providing for a credit against the oil and gas

production tax for costs incurred in drilling certain
oil or natural gas exploration wells in the Nenana
Basin."

HB 276 was SCHEDULED but not HEARD

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 04/03/12 1:39 P. M



Co-Chair Stoltze discussed the schedule for the follow ng
day.

#
ADJ OURNVENT
4:09:54 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 4:09 PM

House Fi nance Committee 21 04/03/12 1:39 P. M



